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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

In 1957 soon after the town of Washington-Wilkes decided to deed the
Barnett Slaton House to the Georgia Historical Commission, the Commission's
expert architectural consultant, Thomas G. Little, wrote: "The building is
in a relatively pure state of preservation." In this same evaluation - a
report on the value of the building for development as an historic house
museum - Little said:

The structure consists of two or more periods. The earlier house con-
sisted of that portion in rear of the present stair hall. Its plan
consisted of one large room opening onto a front porch and rear porch,
stair and entrance hall at present bathroom area and a room with fire-
place in rear. A leanto addition was added next, giving this floor
four rooms with porches. At still a later period the present front .
stair hall and rooms were added with porches. All of these major
additions were made prior to The War Between The States and are cer-
tainly worthy of complete restoration.

Mr. Little's recommendations were accepted and he was put in charge of reno-
vation and restoration. This took place under two separate contracts, the
first in 1958 and the second in 1962. (A third contract to restore a Greek
Revival style parapet at the front elevation cornice line will be let at
some future date.)

Today the structure is basically as it was in 1857, a white frame two-—
story house on a high basement, with 18 rooms, numerous hallways and a totall
of 13 doors opening onto numerous porches. Restoration of the front and twg
side porches to their original appearance as Downingesque trellis-work
verandas was especially important. They unify the large structure, merging
the two clapboarded and shuttered cubes into one composition. And not a
Greek or Roman column in sight!

The ground floor has been restored as a kitchen and storage area, in-
cluding a dry well. The main floor, a sort of "piano nobile" reached by a
flight of stairs, has a wide hall, furnished double parlors, dining room
and bedroom. On the second floor is an important collection of Civil War
relics. The museum grounds have been landscaped to recapture the spirit of
antebellum gardens and gardening.
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The Washington-Wilkes Historical Museum is a
Historical Commission as a house museum representati
bellum Georgia. Perhaps no other city in Georgia would be so appropriate
for such a museum. The small city of Washington, spared from Sherman's
torch, is replete with beautiful homes of the ante-bellum period. The
lovely house furnishings, the landscaped grounds and a fine collection of
Civil War relics and other exhibits provide visitors with a constant re-
minder of life in a bygone era.

The earliest section of the house was built around 1835 or 1836 by
Albert Gallatin Semmes on land once owned by Micajah Williamson, one of the
founders of Washington. In 1836 Semmes sold the property, dwelling and

 outbuildings to Mrs. Mary Sneed for $4500. Samuel Barnett, Georgia's
first Railroad Commissioner and an important figure in Washington's business

commmity, acquired the property and Surrounding 100 acres in 1857.

hallways and the present stalrcase. The house remalned in the Barnett

The house and present lot went to William Armstrong Slaton whose family
lived here until 1955. The City of Washington acquired the house shortly
thereafter and deeded it to the State. Thomas G. Little, historical archi-
tect, planned and directed the restoration of the house:

The main floor of the house is furnished as a double parlor, dining
room and bedroom; the lovely antiques are typical of those found in fine
Georgia homes of the mid-19th century. The ground floor has been restored
as a kitchen and storaée area, including a dry well. Included in the ex-
hibits here are kitchen utensils and other household equipment used in
ante-bellum life. On the second floor is a collection of Civil War relics,

. one of the finest in the South. Completing this view of southern living,
the grounds of the museum have been landscaped following an early garden
" plan and using plants typical of the ante-bellum period.

However, the casual visitor used to such books as White Columns in
Georgia probably does not think the completed overall picture is"typical of
the antebellum period." Standing not in fields of cotton but at the edge o
the 0ld village limits, the museum is an architectural storehouse reflectin
the evolution of a settled community from the late 18th century until the
time of the Civil War. Having grown by accretion into a comfortable unpre-
tentious mansion house, it shows the hands of carpenters and the ideas of
owners working in a long standing craft tradition. Details in fashionable
architectural styles from the Federal to the Downingesque merely embellish

the basic four square simplicity of two weatherboarded and shuttered cubes.

family until 1913 at which time the property was divided and sold separatelj
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Files and Documents, Georgia Historical Commission.

Little, Thomas G., "Preliminary Inspection Report on the W.A. Slaton
House, Washington, Georgia," September 4, 1957

Mitchell, William R., Jr., Personal Inspections.
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